# Supplement to Government Gazette

# PERTH: FRIDAY, APRIL 14.

#### BY-LAWS OF THE KALGOORLIE RACING CLUB.

#### CONSTITUTION AND MEMBERSHIP.

# Title and how Constituted.

The Club shall be called "The Kalgoorlie Racing Club," and shall consist of all persons who have been or shall hereafter be duly elected members in the manner hereinafter provided, and who continue to be members pursuant to these By-laws.

#### Objects.

Objects.

2. The objects of the Club shall be the support, furtherance, and improvement of the breed of horses, and the sport of horse racing in Western Australia; the promotion, furtherance and management of race meetings, the care, maintenance, control and improvement of the land now known as the Kalgoorlie Racecourse, and all buildings, erections, and improvements thereon, and of all other lands and property of whatsoever nature or description now or hereafter acquired, held by or belonging to the Club or to any person or persons in trust for the Club; and the doing of all such things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of all or any of the above objects.

#### Members and election of members.

3. Candidates for admission as members of the Club shall be 3. Candidates for admission as members of the Club shall be proposed by one member and seconded by another, in writing, and shall be elected by the Committee by ballot. One black ball in every five votes shall exclude, and no candidate shall be so admitted unless notice of his candidature, with the names of his proposer and seconder, has previously been sent to each member of the Committee in the circular convening the meeting for such election. No election of members shall take place between the 30th day of April and the date of the holding of the Annual General Meeting in any year.

#### Candidate when a member.

4. A candidate shall become a member so soon as he has been elected and has paid his entrance fee and subscription for the current year.

#### Honorary Life members.

- Any person who shall have given a plate, purse, or trophy of the value of Fifty pounds, to be run for at the races under the management of the Club, or contributed Fifty pounds in one sum to the funds of the Club, may be admitted as an honorary life member of the Club by the committee. It shall be competent, however, for the Committee to accept or decline such
- 6. The Committee shall have power at all times to appoint as honorary life members of the Club any member of the Club who, in the opinion of the Committee, has rendered meritorious services to the Club, and any such appointment shall be binding on the Club. The election of Messrs. Charles Cubush, Charles Clark, and James J. Wilkinson as honorary life members of the Club is hereby confirmed.
- 7. An honorary life member shall have all the rights and privileges of a member, but shall be exempt from payment of any subscription.

# Honorary members.

The Governor of Western Australia and his Staff for the time being shall be honorary members of the Club.

Visitors to the State may be admitted by the Committee as honorary members at any race meeting without payment of any subscription.

# Non-paying members not to vote.

10. No member, except an honorary life member, shall be competent to vote on any occasion whatever, or enjoy any privileges of a member, until he shall have paid his subscription for the current year.

# Addresses of members.

All members shall communicate their addresses from time to time to the Secretary of the Club, who shall register the same, and all letters delivered at or sent by post to such addresses shall be sufficient. If no addresses be given, all letters and notices posted and addressed to the last known place of abode of the member shall be sufficient.

# Persons ceasing to be members.

12. All persons ceasing to be members of the Club whether by retirement, expulsion, death, neglecting to pay the annual subscription, or otherwise, shall forfeit *ipso facto* all right to or claim upon the Club or its property.

# Entrance fee and annual subscription.

13. The entrance fee shall be £5 5s., and the annual subscription shall be £2 2s., payable in advance to the Secretary on the first day of May, provided that members elected to the Club between the first day of January and the first day of May in any year shall be required to pay only £1 1s. subscription for the remainder of the current year.

# Membership and Ladies' tickets.

14. Each member, in addition to his membership ticket, shall be entitled to two ladies' tickets.

# Entrance fee, when payable.

15. Every candidate shall, within one month after election, pay his entrance fee of \$5 5s. and subscription for the current year, otherwise his election shall be void, unless he shall justify the delay to the satisfaction of the Committee.

#### Absentee members.

- 16. Any member who has paid his subscription for the current year, and who intends to be absent from the State during at least six months of the succeeding year, may make written application to the Committee to place his name on the absent members' list.
- 17. The Committee may grant such application, and if such member continues absent from the State for more than one year, may keep the name of such member on the absent members' list during his absence.
- 18. Any member whose name is on the absent members' list shall not be required to pay his annual subscription for the year or years during which his name is on such list, and shall not during such time be entitled to any of the privileges of a member, provided always that any such member may at any time on his return to the State pay his subscription for the current year and become an effective member.

#### Non-payment of subscription.

Non-payment of subscription.

19. If any member neglects to pay his subscription when due, notice shall be sent to him or his agent (if known) or to his last known place of abode by the Secretary, and if the subscription be not paid before the next following race meeting of the Club, the defaulter shall cease to be a member of the Club, and his name shall be erased from the list of members; unless he can assign to the Committee reasons which they may deem satisfactory for his default, when on payment of the amount due the Committee may replace his name upon the list.

#### THE COMMITTEE.

#### Committee of management to be elected.

The affairs and general business of the Club shall be managed by a Committee, consisting of fifteen members, to be elected at the general meeting. The eight longest in office shall retire annually, but shall be eligible for re-election, and as between two or more members who have been in office an equal between two or more members who have been in office an equal length of time, the member or members to retire shall in default of agreement between them be determined by lot. Provided that if the seat of any member who has held office for one year or longer shall become vacant and such vacancy shall have been filled under By-law 26, then the number of members to retire under this rule shall be reduced by as many as the number of vacancies so filled.

# Committee to be elected by ballot.

21. The names of all members proposed or submitting themselves for election as members of the Committee shall be forwarded to the Secretary at the office of the Club at least fifteen clear days before the general meeting, from which names shall be elected by ballot the members of the Committee in place of those who retire or whose seats shall have become vacant, and a list of such names, in alphabetical order, shall be published in one of the West Austraian newspapers.

# If number of candidates equal to number of vacancies.

22. If the number of candidates nominated for election as members of the Committee is equal to the number of vacancies, the Chairman of the general meeting shall declare all the candidates elected.

# If number of candidates less than number of vacancies.

23. If the number of candidates nominated for election as members of the Committee is less than the number of vacancies the Chairman of the general meeting shall declare all candidates who have been nominated elected, and the general meeting may thereupon proceed to fill up the other vacancies by show of hands, subject to a poll being demanded.

# If number of candidates greater than number of vacancies.

24. If the number of candidates nominated for election as 24. If the number of candidates nominated for election as members of the Committee is greater than the number of vacancies, a ballot shall be held on the day of the annual general meeting, commencing at 3.30 p.m. and closing at 8 p.m., and the boxes containing the ballot papers shall be opened in the presence of three scrutineers chosen by the general meeting. Each ballot paper shall contain the names of all candidates duly nominated, printed in alphabetical order according to their surnames, and every member voting shall strike through the names of all persons named in such ballot paper except the names of the candidates for whom he desires to vote, and shall then names of all persons named in such ballot paper except the names of the candidates for whom he desires to vote, and shall then deposit such ballot paper in the ballot box. Every member voting shall vote for the full number of candidates to be elected, and any ballot paper containing a greater or less number of names than there are vacancies to be filled shall be rejected as informal. The majority of the scrutineers chosen by the general meeting shall, as soon as they shall have counted the votes, certify to the Chairman of the meeting, the names of the successful candidates, and in case of there being an equal number of votes recorded for two or more candidates, the majority of the scrutineers shall then decide which of such candidates shall be elected. The names contained in such certificate of the scrutineers shall be the members of the Committee in place of those who retire or whose seats shall have become vacant. The Committee shall from time to time make such provisions as they shall think necessary for conducting such ballot.

Voting by absent members.

# Voting by absent members.

25. A member unable to attend on the day of election to record his vote may at any time after the names of the intending candidates have been duly advertised, obtain from the Secretary on personal application, a ballot paper, and after duly notifying thereon the members for whom he proposes to vote, shall put such paper into an envelope endorsed "Ballot paper," and personally deliver the same to the Secretary, and the Secretary

shall retain such ballot paper and envelope until the day of election, when in the presence of the scrutineers it shall be opened, and the ballot paper taken therefrom and deposited in the ballot box. Provided that nothing herein contained shall entitle a member to delegate to any other person, whether a member or not, the power to use such ballot paper. Any member absent from Kalgoorlie at the time of the election may record his vote by letter addressed to the Secretary, and such letters shall be delivered to the scrutineers on the day of the election. Provided that any vote so recorded shall be rejected as informal if it contains the names of a greater or less number of candidates than the number required to be elected.

#### Casual vacancu.

26. In the event of any vacancy occurring in the Committee after the annual election, the Committee shall have the power of electing a member to fill such vacancy until the next general meeting of the Club, when the member shall be elected by the members to fill such vacancy.

#### POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE.

Committee to appoint and dismiss officers and servants.

27. The Committee shall have the appointment of the bankers and all officers and servants of the Club, and allow such bankers and an officers and servants of the Cittle, and allow such salaries, allowances, and recompenses to them respectively during their sevrice or employment as the Committee shall from time to time see fit. All such officers and servants shall be appointed during the pleasure of the Committee, who shall have the power of discontinuing their services at any time.

Committee to enter into contracts and to dispose of funds of

Committee to enter into contracts and to dispose of funds of the Club.

28. The Committee shall have the power to enter into such contracts on behalf of the Club as they shall think advisable, and shall at all times dispose of the funds of the Club as they may deem best for the carrying out the objects of the Club, and may also, if they think fit, set aside any portion of the profits derived from any race meeting for the purpose of establishing and maintaining a fund for the relief or assistance of any jockey injured at any race meeting held by the Club, or the relatives of any jockey killed at any such meeting, and may, in like manner, donate any portion of such profits to any local public charitable donate any portion of such profits to any local public charitable institution or society.

#### Committee may delegate powers.

29. The Committee may delegate any of their powers to sub-committees consisting of such member or members of their body as they think fit.

Committee to appoint person to handicap.

The Committee shall appoint one or more competent persons to frame the handicaps for the race meetings of the Club, and the name or names of such person or persons shall be notified to the public. .

Expulsion of members.

31. Any member who has been found guilty of a corrupt practice under the rules of racing by the Committee or Stewards, or by the Committee or Stewards of the Western Australian Turf Club, or by the Committee or Stewards of any Club whose decision has been adopted by the Western Australian Turf Club shall, ipso facto, be expelled from the Club.

The Committee may expel any member who-

- (a) Has been found guilty by the Committee or Stewards of any racing club of a mal-practice, or who has been disqualified under the rules of racing by the Committee or Stewards of any racing club.
  (b) Has been guilty of grossly improper conduct or riotous behaviour at any race meeting.
  (c) Is a defaulter in stakes or bets in reference to any race.
  (d.) Becomes a jockey, trainer of horses, or bookmaker.
  (e.) Declines or neglects to pay any fine imposed on him by the Stewards or Committee.
  (f.) Is guilty of any act which, in the opinion of the Committee, renders it undesirable that he should continue to be a member.

- to be a member.

Provided always, that no member, except a member *ipso* facto expelled in accordance with the first part of this rule, shall be expelled by the Committee until after he shall have been given an opportunity to show cause to the Committee why he should not be expelled.

Power to issue programmes at race meetings.

Subject to the rules of racing of the Western Australian 32. Subject to the rules of racing of the Western Australian Turf Club, the Committee shall have power to fix the dates and prepare and issue the programmes of the race meetings of the Club to be held during the year, and to prepare the conditions of, and advertise to be run in succeeding years, such races as they in their judgment may deem expedient to make public during their term of office.

Can decline to receive nominations.

33. All nominations for any race to be run at any race meeting of the Club shall be subject to the approval of the Committee, who may decline to receive any nomination without giving a reason for so doing.

# $Postponement\ of\ races.$

34. The Committee may, in case of urgent necessity, and subject to the powers of the Stewards as defined by the rules of racing of the Western Australian Turf Club, put off from time to time the races at any race meeting of the Club.

# Power to make regulations.

35. The Committee shall have power to make, alter, and repeal such regulations, not inconsistent with these By-laws, as they may think fit for the management and internal administration of the Club, and of their own proceedings and for regulating the duties, privileges, and control of all owners, trainers includes the club, and for regulating the admission, conducts and control of all owners, trainers includes and control of all owners, trainers, jockeys, farriers, and attendants on the Club's course, and for licensing bookmaker, to bet on any part or parts of the Club's course, and for regulating the fee to be paid by the licensee on the issue to him of

# PROCEEDINGS OF COMMITTEE.

Meeting of Committee.

The Committee shall meet as often as they deem necessary (five shall form a quorum), and minutes of the proceedings at the meeting shall be entered in a book, and be read and confirmed at the next meeting.

Committee meeting may be convened by Secretary.

A committee meeting may be convened by the Secretary at any time, and shall be convened by him upon receiving a requisition requesting him to do so signed by three members of the Committee.

Chairman.

38. The Chairman of the Committee shall be elected by the Committee at their first meeting after the annual general meeting.

# Acting Chairman.

39. In the absence of the Chairman, the Committee may elect an acting Chairman of the Committee, and such acting Chairman may, during the absence of the Chairman, exercise all the rights, powers, authorities, and privileges of the Chairman.

Presiding at meetings.

40. The Chairman of the Committee shall preside at all meetings of the Committee, and if he be not present some other member of the Committee to be elected by the meeting. The Chairman of any such meeting, in the case of equality of votes, shall have a casting vote in addition to the vote to which he is entitled as a member of Committee.

# Non-attendance at meetings.

41. Any member of the Committee having been absent from four\_consecutive meetings of the Committee, extending over two months, shall cease to be a member thereof unless he shall have obtained leave of absence from the Committee, but may be reinstated by a resolution carried by two-thirds of the members of the Committee present at the meeting at which such resolution shall be proposed.

Club to protect Committee and Stewards from legal proceedings.

The Committee and stewards shall be indemnified from 42. The Committee and stewards shall be indemnined from the funds of the Club against damages, verdicts in, and costs of legal proceedings that may be instituted against them or any of them in the exercise of their office or performance of their duties.

Stewards.

Appointment of Stewards.

43. The Committee shall, at their first meeting, after the annual general meeting, proceed to the election of seven stewards, who shall be members of the Club, and whose term of office shall be twelve months. Any vacancy in their number shall be filled up by the Committee.

# Powers of Stewards.

44. The stewards shall have such powers, privileges, and duties as are from time to time fixed and determined by these By-laws and the rules of racing of the Western Australian Turf

# THE SECRETARY.

# Duties of the Secretary.

Duties of the Secretary.

45. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to keep full and accurate accounts of all sums of money received or expended on account of the Club, to make full and accurate minutes in the books of the proceedings of all general, special, and committee meetings, to give all notices of general and special meetings, and also propositions to be brought before them, and also notice of Committee meetings, and, subject to the directions of the Committee, to make all disbursements of the funds of the Club by cheque (to be drawn upon the bank at which the Club account is kept) to obtain receipts or discharges for the same, and to carry out the instructions of the Committee and stewards respectively.

# THE TREASURER.

Duties of the Treasurer.

46. It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to sign with the Secretary all cheques authorised by the Committee and to present at the annual meeting a balance-sheet of the total receipts and expenditure for the preceding year, and to submit a similar balance-sheet to the Committee after every race meeting of the Club.

# THE AUDITORS.

# Duties of auditors and how appointed.

47. Two auditors shall be appointed by the Committee at their first meeting after the annual general meeting, and the Committee shall fix their rate of remuneration. The auditors shall audit the accounts of the Club for the annual meeting, and shall also make a separate audit after every race meeting of the Club, In the event of there being any vacancy in the auditors the Committee shall have power at any time to fill such vacancy.

# GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETINGS.

# Annual general meeting.

Annual general meeting.

48. There shall be a general meeting of the Club on the third Monday in May in each year, for the purpose of electing members of the Committee and officers, discussing the general business of the Club, and receiving from the Committee an abstract of the state of the accounts of the receipts and expenditure and balance-sheet, with a report of the general concerns of the Club during the year immediately preceding the 1st of May, and a statement of the balance of such account.

Report and balance-sheet to be forwarded to each member.

49. A printed copy of such report and balance-sheet and statement of receipts and expenditure shall be posted or sent to each member of the Club previously to the general meeting.

# Notice of meetings.

50. Seven days' notice at the least of any general meeting, or

hour of meeting, and, in case of special business, the general nature of such business, shall be given to the members by circular letter addressed to such members at their registered addresses, but the non-receipt by any member of such notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at any general or special general meeting. general meeting.

# Notice of propositions by members.

51. Should any member desire to bring forward any proposition or motion at the annual general meeting of the Club, he shall give written notice thereof to the secretary at least 14 clear days prior to the general meeting a which he may wish his proposition considered, and the Secretary shall embody such proposition in the notice convening the meeting and no business of a special description shall be transacted at any such meeting unless special notice of such business shall have been given in the circular letter convening such meeting.

#### Extraordinary or special general meeting.

52. The Committee may whenever they think fit, and they shall upon a requisition in writing under the hands of not fewer than 12 members convene a special general meeting.

# Requisition for special meeting.

53. Any requisition so made by members shall clearly and fully express the objects of the meeting required to be called, and shall be left at the office of the Club.

#### Special meeting when held.

54. Upon such requisition being so left, the Committee shall forthwith proceed to convene a special general meeting to be held at such time and place as they shall think fit, not being more than 28 days after the leaving of such requisition.

#### Business to be transacted.

55. No business shall be entered upon by any special general meeting except such as shall be set forth in the notice convening the same.

#### Quorum.

At the annual general or any special meeting, ten mem-50. At the annual general or any special meeting, ten members must be present before proceeding to business; but should there not be a quorum at the expiration of half-an-hour from the time appointed for assembling, the meeting shall be considered as adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and place, and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, it shall be adjourned sine die.

#### Chairman.

57. The Chairman of Committee, or in his absence some member of Committee, or in their absence some member to be elected by the meeting shall preside at the annual general or any special meeting. The Chairman of all such meetings in the case of equality of votes shall have a casting vote in addition to the vote to which he is entitled as a member.

# Voting.

58. All propositions, questions and matters (except the election of committee-men nominated as before mentioned) submitted in accordance with these By-laws to any meeting shall be decided by a majority of those present, to be determined in the first instance by a show of hands.

# Poll.

59. Any five members may demand a poll, and if a poll is so demanded the proposition, question, or matter shall be finally decided by a division so to be held and conducted in such manner as shall be determined by the Chairman.

# Reconsideration of decisions.

All decisions arrived at and carried at any annual general or special meeting held in conformity with these By-laws shall be binding and conclusive upon all members of the Club, and no notice of motion to reconsider any such decision shall be received during the current year ending on the 30th day of April in each year after such decision has been so arrived at.

# Interpretation of By-laws.

61. The interpretation of the By-laws at any meeting shall in the first place be left to the Chairman, and any member may, if he think fit, require the Chairman to submit the question of interpretation to the meeting which shall decide.

# Alteration of By-laws.

62. No By-law shall be altered or repealed except at a special meeting duly convened for the purpose in accordance with "The Kalgoorlie and Boulder Racing Clubs' Act, 1904."

# MISCELLANEOUS.

# $Insulting \ of ficials.$

1 Insulting operates.

63. If any person shall be proved to the satisfaction of the Committee to have insulted, abused, or imputed improper motives to any member of the Committee, steward, handicapper, or official of the Club in connection with the performance of any matter or thing done by him, them, or any of them, such person shall be punished in such manner either by being fined a sum not exceeding ten pounds, being warned off the course and other places where the By-laws of the Club are in force, or otherwise as the nature of the case may require.

# Management of Racecourse.

# Division of Club's premises.

- 64. The divisions into which the land vested in the Chairman for the time being of the Club, with the buildings, erections, and fences thereon, is parceled out and known, are as follows:—
  - 1. The Grand Stand, the Lawn and Approaches
  - 2. The Weighing Yard, the Committee Room, the Committee Stand, the Stewards' Room, the Stewards' Stand, the Judge's Box and approaches.
  - 3. The Saddling Paddock.
  - The outer Carriage Paddock and Approaches.
  - 5. The Leger Stand and Enclosure.
  - 6. The Course proper.
  - 7. The Training Ground and Approaches.

- 8. The Members' Stand and Enclosures, and the Mem-

- bers' Carriage Paddock and Approaches.
  The Totalisator Buildings.
  The Jockeys' and Trainers' Stand.
  That part of the land not included in the previous ten divisions.

### Admission of members.

Admission of memoers.

65. Subject to the provisions of the By-laws of the Club, all members of the Kalgoorlie Racing Club shall, upon production of their membership card, be admitted at all race and other meetings to all parts of the said land (with the exception of the second, sixth, seventh, ninth, and tenth divisions hereinbefore specified), and with their own horses and carriages (not being licensed horses and vehicles) to the members' carriage paddock. Provided that no licensed vehicle shall be allowed to remain in the members' carriage paddock.

# Admission for training horses.

Admission for training horses.

66. Subject to the provisions of the By-laws of the Club, all persons who shall have duly paid for admission to the seventh of the said divisions for the purpose of training or exercising horses shall, upon production of their tickets, be admitted thereto, with the horses in respect of which such tickets shall have been issued, for the period for which such tickets are issued, subject, however, to such orders as the Committee or stewards may from time to time give as there may be occasion with reference to such division. Any person trespassing on such division with a horse or horses without having first paid the necessary fees shall be disqualified, or otherwise dealt with as the Committee may in their discretion determine, and, in addition, shall be deemed an offender against By-law No. 80, and liable to punishment thereunder.

Vehicles not to be driven on course proper

# Vehicles not to be driven on course proper.

67: No vehicle shall at any time (without consent of the Committee) be driven or taken across, or on to the sixth and seventh of the said divisions.

#### Members' stand and enclosures.

68. No person, except members of the Club, shall be admitted to the eighth of the said divisions without the consent of the Chairman or of the Committee, and any member who shall, without the consent of the Chairman or of the Committee shall, without the consent of the Chairman or of the Committee being first obtained, take any other person (not being a fellow member or an honorary member) into the said eighth division except as hereinafter provided shall, for the first offence, pay a fine of Five pounds; for the second offence, pay a fine of Ten pounds. Such fines shall in no case be remitted by the Committee, and for the third offence such offending member shall be expelled from the Club. Provided that any member may take in his company into the members' carriage paddock any person or persons holding a ticket entitling such person or persons to admission to the first division.

69. No person except the Judge or timekeeper, or any person the judge may call to his assistance, shall enter the judge's box at the time the horses are prepared to start, or are running for any race.

# Weighing stand and yard.

70. No person shall enter the weighing stand or the weighing yard, or the approaches thereto, except the officers of the Club, the jockeys requiring to be weighed, and the owners and trainers of horses desirous of seeing their jockeys weighed.

# Stewards' and Committee's stand and room.

71. No person shall enter the stewards' stand, the stewards' room, the committee stand, the committee room, or the several approaches thereto, except the officers of the Club, and such persons as the Committee or the stewards may invite to do so.

# Course proper.

72. No person shall be allowed on the course proper at any time except the officers of the Club and the jockeys of horses actually engaged in a race about to be run, without the written authority of the stewards during the time a race meeting is under their jurisdiction, or without the consent of the Committee at

Admission of general public.
73. No person shall enter the said first, third, fourth, or fifth divisions of the said course without a ticket duly authorising him in that behalf, which ticket shall be issued on the express understanding that it is revocable by the Committee or stewards or any one of them at any time.

Totalisator buildings.

74. No person shall enter the ninth of the said divisions except the Chairman of the Committee, any committee-man or stewards specially appointed by the Committee to supervise the working of the totalisator, the officers of the Club engaged in the working of the said machine, or on the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee.

# Persons who shall not be admitted.

- 75. The following persons shall not be admitted into any of the said divisions, or, if they have gained admission, may be expelled therefrom by the Committee or stewards on being tendered a refund of any money paid by any such persons to obtain entrance :-
  - (a.) Any person under sentence of disqualification by the Committee or stewards, or by the Committee or stewards of any other racing club, whose decision has been adopted by the Committee of the Western Australian Turf Club under the rules of racing.
  - (b.) Any person who has been warned off the course.
  - (c.) Any person not admitted to any of the said divisions in pursuance of these rules.
  - (d.) Any person whose name is on the forfeit list.
  - (e.) Any person who is a defaulter in debts

- (f.) Any person who has been at any time declared guilty of a corrupt practice by the Committee or stewards of any other racing club, whose decision has been adopted by the Committee of the Western Australian Turf Club under the rules of racing.
- (g.) Any person who, having been a member, has been expelled from the Club.

Committee or stewards may refuse admission.

76. The Committee or stewards, or any one of them, may, without reason, refuse admission to all or any of the said divisions to anyone not a member, and may, with or without reason, expel any person not a member who has gained admission to any of the said divisions on refunding such person the money be her point to obtain entrance. he has paid to obtain entrance.

#### Tickets to be produced.

77. Each member of the Club, and all persons paying for admission to the first, third, fourth, and fifth divisions shall be supplied with a ticket of admission, which he shall, upon demand, produce, or, if required, surrender to any gatekeeper, servant, or other person having authority from the Committee or stewards to demand the production or surrender of the same.

Remaining on land after races concluded prohibited.

78. No person without permission, shall remain on the said land or any division or part thereof, for a longer period than half-an-hour after the last race of the day shall have been run.

Tenants to comply with Committee's orders.

Tenants to comply with Committee's orders.

79. Persons renting, or hiring for any race meeting, or any other purpose the racecourse or any of the stands or any portion thereof respectively, or any booth upon the said land, shall abide by any order given by the Committee or stewards in reference to the said land and the buildings and other erections thereon.

Cattle, etc., trespassing.

Cattle, etc., trespassing.

80. No person shall, without the consent of the Committee, allow any cattle, horses, camels, donkeys, pigs, or sheep, of which he is the owner, or which are under his control or in his custody, to trespass into or upon the said land, or any part or division thereof; and no person shall, without the consent of the Committee, admit, take, or drive any cattle, horses, camels, donkeys, pigs or sheep, into or upon the said land or any division or part thereof. Any person offending against this By-law shall, on conviction thereof before a Justice forfeit and pay for every such offence over and above the amount of the injury done, any sum not exceeding Ten pounds.

Dogs. goods. and noultry to be destroyed

Dogs, goats, and poultry to be destroyed.

81. No person shall admit, take, or drive any dogs, goats, or poultry into or on the said land, or any division or part thereof, or into any building thereon, and any dogs, goats, or poultry found upon the said land may be destroyed by any officer or servant of the Club. Any person offending against this By-law shall, on conviction thereof before a Justice, forfeit and pay for every such offence over and above the amount of the injury done, any sum not exceeding Ten pounds.

# Lost property.

Any officer or servant or employee of the Club, and any 82. Any officer or servant or employee of the Club, and any other person finding any lost property or document upon any land in the use or occupation of the Club, or upon any land belonging to the Club, or in any building or premises erected on any such land, shall immediately deliver the same at the office appointed by the Committee for the reception of lost property, to the person in charge of such office, but should such office be closed shall deliver such property to the office of the Club in Kalgoorlie to the person for the time being in charge of such office. Any person committing a breach of this By-law will be liable to a penalty not exceeding Five pounds.

Distributing bills or placards prohibited.

83. No person, unless duly authorised in writing by the Secretary, shall distribute or post or stick bills or placards, or assist in distributing or posting or sticking same within or upon any fence, wall, or building, property, or premises of the Club. Any person committing a breach of this By-law will be liable to a penalty not exceeding Five pounds.

- Removal and punishment of offenders.

  84. Any person committing on the said land, or any division or part thereof, or in any of the buildings or erections for the time being thereon, any of the following offences, may be removed from such land notwithstanding such person may be a member of the Club, or may have purchased, and is or may be in possession of a ticket of admission, and in addition, such person shall, on conviction of any such offences before a Justice, forfeit and pay for every such offence, a penalty not exceeding Ten pounds:—
  - 1. Assaulting any person.
  - 2. Being drunk.
  - Riding, crossing, or trespassing upon the course, or any part of it, unless authorised, during the race meeting, or when the horses are preparing or prepared to start, or are running for any race.
     Using profane, indecent, or obscene language.

  - 5. Using any threatening, abusive, or insulting words.
  - Behaving improperly, riotously, or in a disorderly manner, or fighting.
  - 7. Being found in the first, third, fourth or fifth divisions and not producing upon demand or (if required) not surrendering to any gate keeper, servant, or other person having authority from the Committee to demand production of the same, a ticket duly authorising admission to such division, unless the

person so found shall forthwith satisfy the stewards or one of them, that the proper charge for admission has been paid by him, and that his ticket has been

lost.
8. Obtaining admission to the said land or any division or part thereof, when disentitled to such admission under these By-laws.
9. Remaining on the said land or any division or part thereof, after having been warned off any part of the said land by or on behalf of the Committee or stowards.

- Betting or wagering, or offering to bet or wager, unless duly authorised so to do by the Committee under these By-laws.
- 11. Selling or offering to sell, tips or information in connection with races run or to be run on the Club's course.

Defaulters.

85. A person shall be, and be considered, a defaulter in bets, if the Committee, after investigation, shall have decided that such person is a defaulter.

 $Tolls\ and\ charges.$ 

86. The following is the scale of toils and charges which shall be levied and taken for admission to the several divisions of the said land and the buildings thereon respectively:—

| 77. 41. 1 * * * * 1 1   | S.  | d. |  |
|---|-----|----|--|
| For the admission of each male person to the first division  For the admission of each lady, and each   | 11  | 0  |  |
| person under the age of 14 years to the first division  For the admission of each person to the third division (saddling paddock) not exceed- | 6   | 0  |  |
| For the admission of each person to the fifth   | 2   | 6  |  |
| division (leger reserve)  | 3   | 0  |  |
| gir months  | 1.0 | 0  |  |

Provided that all members of the Kalgoorlie Racing Club shall, upon production of their tickets, and all ladies producing ladies' cards issued to members, be admitted to any part of the said land with the exception of the second, sixth, seventh, ninth, and tenth divisions, and shall be admitted to the members' carriage paddock, with their carriages and horses, without payment of any of the above tolls and charges for admission.

Provided further, that no licensed vehicle shall be allowed to remain in the members' carriage paddock.

#### BOOKMAKERS. Bookmakers.

87. Any person may carry on the business of a bookmaker on the Kalgoorlie Racing Club's course in such places set apart for the purpose by the Committee if he shall have complied with the following conditions:—

1. That he has been approved of by the Committee, and his name and address registered at the office of the Kalgoorlie Racing Club, and that he shall have obtained from the Committee of the Club a license authorising him to carry on betting operations at or upon the racecourse of the Club.

upon the racecourse of the Club.

2. That he has paid to the Committee for the privilege of betting in and upon the place set apart for the purpose in the first, fourth, fifth, and eleventh divisions, such annual fee, or such fee for each race meeting of the Club as the Committee may determine for each of the respective divisions: Provided always, that the Committee shall have full power at any time in their absolute discretion to revoke all or any of such registrations, and they shall not be compelled to refund any part of the said fees so paid as aforesaid.

3. This privilege shall extend to all race meetings held on

3. This privilege shall extend to all race meetings held on the Kalgoorlie Racing Club's course, whether under the auspices of the Kalgoorlie Racing Club or any other Club.

other Club.

Any person offending against this By-law shall be removed from all land or lands vested in the Chairman of the said Club, or over which the Chairman and the Committee shall have control, and shall, for every such offence, forfeit a sum not exceeding Ten pounds, to be recovered as provided by "The Kalgoorlie and Boulder Racing Clubs' Act, 1904."

88. The business of a bookmaker shall not include any betting which is illucal.

which is illegal.

Penalties.

89. Every person convicted of any offence against any of these By-laws not otherwise specially provided for, shall be liable for every such offence to a penalty not exceeding the sum of Ten pounds; and every penalty for a breach of or offence against any of these By-laws shall be recovered as provided in "The Kalgoorlie and Boulder Racing Clubs' Act, 1904."

A. J. MELDRUM. Chairman Kalgoorlie Racing Club.

7th March, 1905.

The foregoing By-laws having been sent to the Colonial Secretary on the 9th day of March, 1905, and not having been disallowed, are published in accordance with "The Kalgoorlie and Boulder Racing Clubs Act, 1904."

CHAS. W. CROPPER, Secretary Kalgoorlie Racing Club.

10th April, 1905.